
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

February 4, 2015 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 7
Warrants

Accounts Payable 10
Monthly Investment Report Ending January 31, 2015

Investment Report 25
Council Approval for Participation in the State and Federal
Surplus Property Program

Staff Report - Federal Surplus Property 28
Resolution Affirming use of Cooperative Purchasing for
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Projects

Staff Report - Cooperative Purchasing Program 31
Mayor and Council Discussion on Ideas and Future Vision

Kerman Motto 34

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, February 18, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Presentation from the Kerman Historical Society (MR) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: February 4, 2015 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: January 18 - January 31, 2015: $129,537.49; Overtime: $5,020.27; 
Standby: $1,420.32; Comp Time Earned: 7.50 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 5845 - 5939: $211,665.57 
2. Excepting -  Rhonda Armstrong: #5870 - $235.47; Nijjer: #5937 - $219.40 
 Sebastian: #5872 - $2,516.29 & #5925 - $516.75 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending January 31, 2015 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Council Approval for Participation in the State and Federal Surplus Property 
Program (JKB) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the California Department of General 
Services Resolution authorizing Kerman Police Department to participate in the State 
and Federal Surplus Property Program. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Federal Surplus Property 

3



B. SUBJECT: Resolution Affirming Municipal Purchases Through Cooperative Purchasing 
Programs for the Purchase of Goods and Services (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution affirming that Cooperative 
Purchasing complies with federal procurement requirements for the  purchase of goods  
and services using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report – Cooperative Purchasing Program 
 

C. SUBJECT: Mayor and Council Discussion on Ideas and Future Vision (SH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Mayor Hill requested this item be placed on the agenda for the 
Council to discuss ideas and future vision. For the Council's information, attached is the 
City's motto along with the organizational mission, vision statement and core values 
that were developed by the executive team as part of a SWOT analysis conducted in 
2013. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Kerman Motto 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 45956.9(a) Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending 
Litigation: Pacific Mountain Partners 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, February 4, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 

 
Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 
 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works Director, City 
Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:32 p.m. 

 

• Roll Call 
 

 
• Invocation 

All present 
except BN 
 
6:33 p.m. BN 
arrived 
 
Mayor Hill 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved GY/BN 
(5-0-0) 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Presentation on Recent Competition from Kerman Youth Hip Hop and 
Kerman Youth Senior Cheer (MR) 

Performed 

B. Bret Harmon with MuniServices will Provide a Presentation on Kerman's 
Sales Tax Revenues (LP) 

Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved GY/BN 
excepting 5785, 
5838, 5827 
(5-0-0) 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: January 4-17, 2015: $128,002.87; Retro Pay & Other: 
$1,353.39; Overtime: $2,344.89; Standby: $1,387.12; Comp Time: 3.0 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5



C. SUBJECT: Warrants No's. 5780-5843: $199,297.92 Except #5785 - $880.85, 
#5838 $177.50; #5827 - $218.38 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

 

Approved BN/GY 
5785, 5838, 5827  
(3-0-2) 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Vacation of Public Utility Easement at 14647 
West Kearney Boulevard (JJ) 

Open/Closed PH 
Approved GY/NF 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council conduct a public hearing to receive testimony 
regarding the proposed vacation of the public utility easement at 14647 
West Kearney Boulevard and by motion adopt resolution vacating the 
public utility easement at 14647 West Kearney Boulevard. 

Res 15-03 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian Route Master Plan along the 
Union Pacific Railroad/California Avenue Alignment (JJ) 

Approved RA/GY 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the 
Union Pacific Railroad/California Avenue Bicycle and Pedestrian Route 
Master Plan and authorize the construction of curb bulbouts in California 
Avenue at the Manor Drive and First Street intersections as part of the 
California Avenue Reconstruction Project. 

Res 15-04 

B. SUBJECT: Vineland Avenue Widening Project Update (JJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive project status update and provide 
any additional input or direction to staff regarding the proposed 
improvements. 

NF/GY Accept 
recommendation 
for the Vinland 
Improvements 
(5-0-0) 

C. SUBJECT: Adoption of Labor Compliance Program for Public Works Projects 
Funded with Proposition 84 Funds (JJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve resolution adopting the 
City of Kerman Labor Compliance Program. 

Approved GY/BN 
(5-0-0) 
 
Res 15-05 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A.  Kerman Chamber Appreciation Dinner - February 12, 6 p.m.,   

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:19 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54956.9 Liability Claim - Claimant: Montalvo; 
Agency Claimed Against: City of Kerman 

No reportable 
action. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:29 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT Approved GY/RA 
(5-0-0) 8:30 p.m. 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of January 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               586.48            

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               (52,000.00)      -                   -                         309.44            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               (46,000.00)      -                   -                         263.78            

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                         -                  

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         877.40            

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         748.60            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   -                         831.28            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         1,700.00          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,194.04               988.05            

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       147,770.28             1,326.62          

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,196.98               343.94            

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,083.00             3,000.00          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00        50,250.50               371.92            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,355.02               529.12            

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,107.00             347.12            

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,867.24               773.56            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       101,113.00             1,134.25          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,103.55               395.13            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,602.82               341.42            

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,352.80               333.24            

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,962.00               252.05            

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             149,000.00       149,111.75             522.93            

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,830.61               595.63            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,799.00               466.14            

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,350.00             495.89            

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       202,868.00             1,865.21          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,952.00               49.52              

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00        96,000.00        95,821.44               -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,129.32               341.84            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,072.52             1,034.25          

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,047.04               444.62            

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,189.04             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,847.70               3,041.21          

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,612.50             1,748.47          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        95,823.36               -                  

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        98,879.22               2,127.31          

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,741.00               -                  

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       246,204.48             -                  

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,263.44             1,243.40          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        96,824.98               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,459.78               2,217.13          

American Express Bank, FSB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00        98,000.00        97,150.34               -                  

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,486.64             2,362.45          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       199,112.00             1,955.34          

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,565.00               -                  

25



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of January 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Average Rate 1.25%
Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,604,099.39          35,964.74        

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             1,578.63          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,798,000.00    4,804,099.39          37,543.37        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51             150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51             -                  -                       150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40          2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72            286.72             286.72            

8/31/14 282.39            282.39             282.39            
9/30/14 231.47            231.47             231.47            

10/31/14 236.58            236.58             236.58            
11/30/14 215.31            215.31             215.31            
12/31/14 213.78            213.78             213.78            
1/31/15 255.68            255.68             255.68            

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
8/28/14 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
9/12/14 (500,000.00)    (500,000.00)     
9/19/14 (160,000.00)    (160,000.00)     
10/2/14 350,000.00      350,000.00       

10/16/14 (165,000.00)    (165,000.00)     
11/19/14 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
12/29/15 200,000.00      200,000.00       

1/2/15 400,000.00      400,000.00       
1/7/15 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     
1/9/15 (20,000.00)      (20,000.00)       

1/22/15 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
1/29/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
1/30/15 700,000.00      700,000.00       

-                   
-                   

2,901,993.40          31,721.93        -                       2,933,715.33    2,933,715.33          1,721.93          

Subtotal All City Investments 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,604,099.39          35,964.74        

26



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of January 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51             131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                

8/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                
9/30/14 4.03                4.03                 4.03                

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 9/29/14 (131,397.43)    (131,397.43)     
10/1/14 (4.03)               (4.03)                

-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Total Investments 5,280,214.02          (331,388.51)    -                       4,948,825.51    4,954,924.90          37,556.32        
Market Value Adjustment 6,099.39                 

(331,388.51)     
(331,388.51)     

-                   

27



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

  
  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Blohm, Chief of Police 
Subject: Council Approval for Participation in the State and Federal Surplus Property Program 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the California Department of General Services Resolution authorizing the Kerman Police 
Department to participate in the State and Federal Surplus Property Program. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Police Chief became aware the Californina Highway Patrol was going to be surplusing mounted radar systems 
in their Crown Victoria patrol vehicles. Since the CHP are now going to the newer SUV type of vehicles, they will no 
longer be using the older style of car mounted radar systems. The Chief has requested to obtain the surplus radar 
equipment from the CHP to be used in the Kerman PD patrol cars. The surplus equipment is free of charge to the 
Kerman PD. The use of radar for traffic enforcment is not new to the Kerman PD as they have been using handheld 
radar units for several years. The CHP has agreed to give the equipment to Kerman PD, but requires Kerman PD 
first estabilsh an account in the Sate and Federal Surplus Program. There is no charge to establish the account. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no cost to the City to accept the surplus property, but we may incur minimal costs to install the equipment. 
 
Attachment: 
 
 A. State DGS Resolution 
 B. State DGS Application 

  

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Participation in Federal Surplus Program 
  

Attachment ‘A’  

29



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Participation in Federal Surplus Program 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

30



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS & RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2015  

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks and Recreation Department Director 
Subject: Resolution Affirming use of Cooperative Purchasing for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Projects 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution affirming that Cooperative Purchasing complies with federal procurement 
requirements for the purchase of goods and services using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The City’s purchasing policy allows for the use of Cooperative Purchasing by accepting a competitive bid which has 
been secured by any federal, state, county or municipal government. The City intends to purchase the restroom 
facility, playground equipment and park amenities for Katey’s Kids Park using CDBG funds through a cooperative 
purchasing process. However, Fresno County Community Development Department has requested that the City 
adopt a resolution affirming that Cooperative Purchasing utilizes a competitive bid process that satisfies all federal 
requirements for the use of Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) funds administered through the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). By adopting the attached resolution, the County will allow 
the City to purchase playground equipment with CDBG funds through the Cooperative Purchasing process.. 

 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  

The City of Kerman’s Purchasing Policy, under the Cooperative Purchases section, authorizes the City to join with 
other public entities for the purpose of collectively preparing specifications, requesting and receiving bids, quotations 
or proposals, and making award to the lowest responsible bidder, provided the source selection method used is 
substantially in compliance with the competitive bidding requirements. The cooperative purchasing process 
streamlines purchasing by allowing the City to accept a competitive bid prepared by any federal, state, county or 
municipal government and ensures that goods and services are of the highest quality and the lowest price. 
 
The City intends to purchase the restroom facility, playground equipment and park amenities for Katey’s Kids Park 
using CDBG funds. The City asked the Fresno County Community Development Department if the Cooperative 
Purchasing process could be used to purchase playground equipment using CDBG funds. The Fresno County 
Community Development Department determined that Cooperative Purchasing using CDGB funds is permitted; 

31



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

however, the County requested that the City adopt a resolution affirming that Cooperative Purchasing complies with 
all federal requirements for the purchase of goods and services on an open and competitive basis. Staff has 
reviewed several cooperative purchasing programs and found that they comply with the federal procurement 
requirements.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The use of the cooperative purchase process will enable the City to expedite or streamline purchasing and save 
money. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
 

32



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

 
Attachment ‘A’  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN  

AFFIRMING MUNICIPAL PURCHASES THROUGH COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAMS FOR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Fresno County Community Development Department has requested the City adopt a resolution 

affirming that the City allows for the use of Cooperative Purchasing and that Cooperative Purchasing utilizes 
procurement practices through a competitive bid process that satisfies all federal requirements of the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for use of Community Development Block Grant (CDGG) funded projects, 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the use of Cooperative Purchasing is consistent with the City’s Purchasing Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff has evaluated this opportunity and determined that Cooperative Purchasing will 

benefit the City of Kerman and will be in the city’s best interests and that the use of the cooperative agreement will 
benefit the public interest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman, California, that the City can utilize 
Cooperative Purchasing Programs to make such purchases for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
projects so long as such Program is otherwise in compliance with HUD competitive bid guidelines. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Staff is authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary 
or convenient to give effect to this Resolution. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
18th day of February 2015 and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
          _________________________  
   Steven Hill  
   Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes  
City Clerk 

33



 

 

People  

•Being sensitive and respect- 
ful to human needs 

•Putting the customer first 

•Involving the community 

•Supporting & encouraging 
staff growth & development 

•Recognizing & appreciating 
employees  

Excellence  
•Pursuing excellence in 

everything that we do 

•Proactive approach to 
problem solving 

•Accepting accountability 
for ourselves and our 
work 

•Focus on detail, 
execution, and quality 

Team 
•Encourage cooperation 

throughout the organization 

•Build on strength and 
collective knowledge 

•Focusing on a common goal 

•Demonstrating concern for 
fellow team members 

•Encourage problem solving 
across departments 

Leadership 
•Demonstrating honesty, 

integrity, and respect 

•Promoting leadership 
development at all levels 

•Communicating openly 

•Foster esprit de corp in 
the organization 

•Focus on succession 
planning 

Innovation 
•Learning from others and 

past experience 

•Challenge the status quo 
and the way we do things 

•Investing in people and 
technology 

•Encourage creativity at all 
levels 

•Reward effective ideas 

 

Organizational Core Values 

Organizational Vision Statement 

Facilitating progress while preserving the community's small-town character. 

Organizational Mission  
Service.  

•To deliver the highest quality of service in an 
efficient and cost-effective manner 

Safety.  

•To ensure that the community is a safe place 
to live, work, raise a family, operate a 
business and visit 

Livability. 

•To focus the organization’s human and 
capital resources on improving the 
community’s quality of life 

City Motto   

A Place Where “Community Comes First” 

34


	Agenda
	Minutes
	February 4, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Monthly Investment Report Ending January 31, 2015
	Investment Report

	Council Approval for Participation in the State and Federal Surplus Property Program
	Staff Report - Federal Surplus Property

	Resolution Affirming use of Cooperative Purchasing for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Projects
	Staff Report - Cooperative Purchasing Program

	Mayor and Council Discussion on Ideas and Future Vision
	Kerman Motto


